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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (formerly known as TML Business
Analytics Services Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (formerly known
as TML Business Analytics Services Limited) (the “Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as
at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
CITor.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuc an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

b) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts - Refer Note 41 (ii) to the financial statements.

¢) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

= directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall:
= directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or
= provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii)Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

¢) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of
the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented
upon by us.

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 101248 W/W-100022

shgbh’(umar
Partner

For BS R & Co. LLP
Place: Mumbai Membership No. 402877
Date: 11 May 2022 UDIN: 22402877AIUXPW5368
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (formerly known as TML Business Analytics
Services Limited)

Independent Auditors’ report on Financial Statements — 31 March 2022 (Continued)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on Financial Statements — 31 March
2022

(Referred to in our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) According 1o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased
manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and
equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable properties
where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(ii) (a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically
verified by the management during the year. For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written
confirmations have been obtained and for inward goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has
been linked with inventory records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and
procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed
on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the
aggregate of each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial
institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company except for statement filed for
quarter ended 31 December 2021 with State Bank of India, Bank of America, Citibank N.A., HDFC
Bank Limited, ICICI Bank Limited, Standard Chartered Bank, Union Bank of India, Kotak Mahindra
Bank Limited and Bank of Baroda where differences were noted between the amount as per books of
account for December quarter and amount as reported in the quarterly statement. The difference was
Rs. 995 crores (amount reported - Rs. 1,249 crores vs amount per books of account - Rs. 254 crores) for
debtors. Further, these statements were subsequently rectified after year ended 31 March 2022 and
submitted to the respective banks.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any
secured loans or secured or unsecured advances in the nature of loans, to companies, firms, limited
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (formerly known as TML Business Analytics
Services Limited)

Independent Auditors’ report on Financial Statements — 31 March 2022 (Continued)

liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. The Company has made investments in and
granted unsecured loans to companies and other parties in respect of which the requisite information is
as below. The Company has not made investments in or granted any unsecured loans to firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given to
us the Company has provided loans to subsidiaries and employees as below:

Particulars Loans

(Rs. Crores)

Aggregate amount during the year

- Others — Companies 6,055.00

- Others — Employees 32.00
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

- Others — Companies 1,770.00

- Others — Employees 23.68

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made and the terms and conditions of the loans
granted during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The
Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans
during the year.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated and the receipts have been regular. Further, the
Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of
loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due
during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of
existing loans given to same parties.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). In respect of investments made and loans
given by the Company, in our opinion the provision of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’) have been complied with.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
p y dep
public. Accordingly. clause 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable.
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (formerly known as TML Business Analytics
Services Limited)

Independent Auditors’ report on Financial Statements — 31 March 2022 (Continued)

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules

(vii)

(viii)

prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act
in respect of its manufactured goods and services provided by it and are of the opinion that prima facie,
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not carried out
a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether these are accurate or complete.

(a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and Value
added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’), Provident fund. Employees’
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, except for Provident fund dues referred to in note
xx to the financial statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax (*GST"),
Provident fund, Employees” State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no
term loans have been obtained by the company till 31 March 2022.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, as at 31 March 2022 we report that the funds raised on short term basis
of Rs 3,404.75 crores have been used for long term investment.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under
the Act. The Company does not hold any investment in any associate or joint venture (as defined under
the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (formerly known as TML Business Analytics
Services Limited)

Independent Auditors’ report on Financial Statements — 31 March 2022 (Continued)

subsidiaries, (as defined under the Act). The Company does not hold any investment in any associate or
joint venture (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement

of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a vigil
mechanism and is not required to have a vigil mechanism as per the Act or SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the transactions with related parties are in compliance with
Section 188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of the related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Ind AS 24 — Related Party disclosures, specified
under the section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. The Company does not fall
under the definition of the listed company or other class of companies which required to constitute an
audit committee under section 177(4)(iv) of the Act and hence the said section is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under
audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence,
provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions of
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) has more than one CIC as part of the
Group. The Group has six CICs as part of the Group.
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (formerly known as TML Business Analytics
Services Limited)
Independent Auditors’ report on Financial Statements — 31 March 2022 (Continued)

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of
the Order is not applicable.

(xix)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

/Kishabh Kumar

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No. 402877
Date: 11 May 2022 UDIN: 224028 77AIUXPW5368
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (formerly known as TML Business Analytics Services
Limited)
Independent Auditors’ report on Financial Statements — 31 March 2022 (Continued)

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Tata Motors
Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as TML Business Analytics Services Limited) for
the year ended 31 March 2022.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Tata Motors
Passenger Vehicles Limited (formerly known as TML Business Analytics Services Limited) (“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (formerly known as TML Business Analytics Services
Limited)

Independent Auditors’ report on Financial Statements — 31 March 2022 (Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 101248 W/W-100022

ishabh Kumar
Partner

For BS R & Co. LLP

Place: Mumbai Membership No. 402877
Date: 11 May 2022 UDIN: 22402877AIUXPW5368



Tata Motors Passenger Vehlcles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited”)

Balance Sheet
{Tin crores)
As ot March 31,
Notes 022 2021
I, ASSETS
{1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Property, plant and equipment aib) 5,737.00 5612.79
(b} Capital work-in-progress afe) 47875 79135
{c) Right of use assels 5 el 736.95 108.08
{d) Other intangible assets G (b} 3,709.20 3,956.64
{e) Intangible assets under development B} 298.09 78251
{f) Financial assets
{I} Loans and advances 7 27.11 2261
() Other financial assets a 80,05 8739
(g) Nor-current tax assets (net) 4.31 -
{h) Other non-current assets 11 21.99 30.74
11,093.45 11,992.11
(2) CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories 13(b) 1,592.47 L022.74
{b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 14 184.89 £9.10
{if} Cash and cash equivalents 16¢b) 422,90 0.15
(i) Loans and advances 8 1,825.37 49.06
(iv) Other financial assets 10 55,20 26,18
[} Other current assats 12 337.06 132.05
(d) Asset held for Sale - Investments in subsidiary 33.45 -
4,451.34 1,319.28
TOTAL ASSETS 15,544,723 13,311.39
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a} Equity share capital 17 9,417.15 0.1%
(b) Equity share capital to be issued on purchase of Business 3 - 9,417.00
{c} Other equity 893,56 (1,463.56)
6,523.59 7,953.59
LIABILITIES
(1) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a) Financlal liabilities
(I} Borrowings 18 193.84 176.67
(i) Lease liabilities 649.34 593.26
{iii} Other financial liabilities 21 2.88 0.12
(b} Provisions 23 139.08 105.92
(e} Other non-current labilities 5 179.97 88.05
1,165.11 G64.02
(2) CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabllities
{l} Borrowings 19 .28 -
(i) Lease liabilities 99,07 92.25
(iil) Trade payables 20
{a) Total cutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 33.03 16.55
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 4,257.51 1,969.98
{iv) Acceptances 2,036.34 1,436.25
(v) Other financial liabilities 23 177.53 195.20
(b) Provisions 23(c} 3an22 306.42
{e} Other current liabilities 6 909,11 377.13
7,856.09 4,393.78
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15,5@‘1 13,311.39
See panying notes to financial
In terms of our report attached and on behall of the Board
For BS R & Co. LLP IF PAALBARI (DIN: 07345077] (
Chartered Accountants rettor
ion No: 101248/ W-100022
INDYA PAUL
Chief Financial Officer)
Membership No 402877
UDIN : - o228
Hnte:Mum’['!;?.-L' 77Ar Ux PW5—3€8 AR
ANJALI SINGH [ACS: A26664]
Company Secratary
Date: May 11, 2022 Place: Mumbal Date: May 11, 2022



Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
Statement of Profit and Loss
(% in crores)
Year ended March 31,

Notes 2022 2021
Revenue from operations
Revenue 32,489.86 16,650.25
Other operating revenue 82.38 64.59
I.  Total revenue from operations 27 (b) 32,572.24 16,714.84
Il.  Other Income 28 (b) 194.12 165.93
ll.  Total Income (1+11) 32,766.36 16,880.77
IV. Expenses
(a)  Costof materials consumed 19,225.90 9,430.84
(b)  Purchases of products for sale 8,823.56 4,361.25
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and products for sale (406.52) 501.895
(d)  Employee benefits expense 29 976.77 761.44
(e)  Finance costs 30 215.85 189.06
(f) Foreign exchange loss (net) 11.39 (0.52)
(g) Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,041.54 1,670.32
(h)  Product development/Engineering expenses 655.26 558.73
(i) Other expenses 3 2,419.26 1,525.19
{i Amount transferred to capital and other accounts 32 (36.99) (22.60)
Total Expenses (IV) 33,926.02 18,975.66
V. Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (I11-1V) (1,159.66) (2,094.89)
VI. Exceptional items
(a) Employee separation cost - 31.78
(b}  Cost of Purchase of PV Undertaking 251.34 -
(c) Impairment losses/(reversal) in passenger vehicle business - (1,182.41)
(d)  Provision/(reversal) for Onerous Contracts and related supplier claims - (549.00)
(e)  Provision/(reversal) for impairment of investments in subsidiary companies (559.91) -
VIl Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI) (851.09) (395.26)
Vill. Tax expense (net)
(a) Current tax - 2
(b)  Deferred tax 0.26 -
Total tax expense 0.26 -
IX. Profit/(loss) for the year (VII-VIII) (851.35) (395.26)
X. Other comprehensive income/(loss):
(A) (i}  Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss:
Remeasurement (losses)/gain on defined benefit obligations {net) (14.90) 13.85
(i) Income tax credit/(expense) relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 3.75 {3.49)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss), net of taxes (11.15) 10.36
Xl. Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year {IX+X) (862.50) (384.90)
XIl. Earnings/(loss) per share (EPS) 34
(A} Ordinary shares (face value of X 10 each) :
() Basic g (0.90) (0.42)
(li) Diluted L4 (0.90) (0.42)

See accompanying notes to financial statements

In terms of our report attached y U'/

For and on behalf of the Board

For BSR & Co. LLP IF WTALBARI [DIN: 07345077]

Chartered Accountants Directar

Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

—
MAR ANINDYA PAUL

Partner Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. 402877

UWIN: 224 ©2877A TUuXPW 5368

Place: Mumbai
ANJALI SINGH [ACS: A26664]
Company Segrety

Date: May 11, 2022 Place: Mumbai Date: May 11, 2022



Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited {(Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")

Cash Flow Statement

(X in crores)
Year ended March 31,

2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit/(loss) for the year (851.35) (395.26)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,041.54 1,670.32
Allowances for trade and other receivables 3.68 7.69
Inventory write down/ (write back) 9.16 (6.64)
Provision/(reversal) for loan given to/investment and cost of closure in subsidiary companies
- 56.59
Impairment losses/(reversal) in passenger vehicle business - (1,182.41)
Write off/provision (reversal) for tangible/intangible assets (including under development) - 228.00
Provision/(reversal) for Onerous Contracts and related supplier claims - (777.00)
Finance costs 215.85 189.06
Interest income (55.64) (34.72)
2,214.59 150.89
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in following assets and liabilities 1,363.24 (244.37)
Trade receivables (99.47) 186.60
Loans and advances and other financial assets (1,802.49) (24.08)
Other current and non-current assets (193.13) 171.50
Inventories (578.89) 308.82
Trade payables and acceptances 2,903.09 260.50
Other current and non-current liabilities 623.65 223.49
Other financial liabilities (31.52) 22.46
Provisions 67.96 (35.91)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 2,252.44 869.01
Income taxes paid (net) (4.31) -
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 2,248.13 869.01
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments for property, plant and equipments (610.91) (659.88)
Payments for other intangible assets (390.98) (251.86)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments 1.90 5.84
Loans to subsidiary company - (56.59)
Redemption of investments in subsidiary company 643.15 -
Proceeds towards assembled workforce 10.06
Increase in short term inter corporate deposit (net) (1,770.00) -
Interest received 55.64 34.72
Net cash used in investing activities (2,061.14) (927.77)

-

F-3



54

TZOZ ‘TT Aoy seg equInpy 3%eld
Aimanas Auodwe)

(#9992 :52v] HONIS MVINY

.
EITCSMIXNIVLLET OHRTT naon
sauffo jeuous fad
INYd YAGNINY

| — M

seaiffo anndaxg Jay) B g
[506£65£0 ‘NIG) YHANYHD HSIIVHS [ezosveco Nial

L

AN o

PIBOG 343 40 JEYSY U0 PUT 103

ZZ0Z ‘1T Aew iieq

1Dqungy :300]d

48201 "ON diys13quap

Xuﬁ&

ZZ000T-M/MBFZTOT ‘o uakdsiBay s, wuy
SJUOUNOINY PRIIIOYD
dTI"0DBYS8Ied

paysene podas Jno Jo sl uj

sjuBwagess (eoueuy o] sajou Builuedwonde aes

-

‘alep (13 pawed sey Auedwod i eyl sayosd g aue m.u_Eou pauieiay

BoN

(oses8’e]  (20°ERE) (rs'969°Z) 66'S8 TTOT ‘TE YoIeIN 1€ SE 3ouejeq
(os'gs9) S (0g'es9) = (€ 2300 s2434) vorESUR) j0AUOD 0 i fpe 19ays asueeq Suuiuado
{eoovz'sl  (z0°E82) (v0'EP0°Z) 66'S8 ek 3y} J0) SSO| AISUIYBIWIOD [E10L
sTTT) {stIT) - Jeak ayy 10y (ss0y) fewoow ansuayRudwod Y0

6658 . - 66'58 ansasay |euded
(se'Ts8) (se'zez) losses) - seah ayy 10§ (s507) f1yosd
(g5 g9v't) 880 (' rop'T) TZ0Z ‘T ludy je se ouejeg

{€3q0u siepnonsed
Aanba {mopqat0u  J3j34) Junadde
soyio oy | #¥PY) sBunuea  uaunsnipe
paueloy wyagelaw  anesoy jende)
(saa003 up 3) Aynbz 2qi0 '8

T

STLIVE
0oLy
ST0

TT0Z ‘TE [PIeW 18 se acuejeg
SunjELapun Ad Jo aseyaund uo SaUBYS 40 Fouenss]
1202 ‘T judy je se asuejeg

ssepmed

(su050 vt 3)

TTOT ‘TE Yaaew papus Jeak auy 20 Aunb3 ui saduey) 3o Jwawaiens
{.poaun saowuag SanMjeuY Ssauisng TWL, SE umouy A i) paywr] sapiyap Jadusssed W eel

iendey aseys Aynba v



Tata Motors Passenger Vehlcles Limited (Formerly known as “TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
Cash Flow Statemant

(% in crores)
Year ended March 31,
2022 2021
Cash flows from financing activities
pay of lease labilities {Including interest) - (164.39)
Interest paid (199.24) {139.54)
Net eash from/{used in} financing activites (199.24) (303.93)
Net Increase In cash and cash equivalents (12.25) (362.69)
Cash and cash equivalents as at April 1, (opening balance) 0.15
Cash inflow on PV undertaking purchased from TML 1,200,00
Openinng balance sheet P to control {Refer note 3) (765.00) 362.84
Effect of forelgn exchange on cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, (closing balance) 422.90 0.15
Non-cash transactions:
Liability towards property, plant and equl and other ble assets purchased on credit/deferred cradit
In 1erms of our report attached Y For and on behalf of the Board
f/’
ForBS R & Co. LLP F MALBARI [DIN: 07345077 \\SH&I ANDRA [DIN: 07593905]
Chartered Accountants irector ef, utive Officer
Firm's Registration No: 101243W/W-100022
-
ANINDYA PALL
Chief Financial Officer
-
RIS IMAR ANIALI SINGH ACS: [
Company Secretary
Membership No. 402877
vow:: 22 Y028 77 AT UXPW 536
Place: Mumbai 7 I x P 3 8
Place: Mumbai Date: May 11, 2022

Date: May 11, 2022
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehlcles Limited (Formerly known as “TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Background and operations

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as TML Business Analytics Services Limited) referred to as (“the Company” ), designs, manufactures and sells a wide
range of automotive vehicles.

The Company is a public limited Company Incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at Mumbai, India. As at March 31, 2022, TMPVL is 8 wholly owned
subsidiary of Tata Motors Limited (TML). Tats Motors Limited (TML) directly or indirectly, holds 100% equity interest In TMPVL. These standalone financial statements were
approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on May 11, 2022,

Slgnificant accounting policies

Statement of compllance

These financial statements have been prepared In accordance with Ind AS as notified under the Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act").

Basls of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain fi fal i which are d at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

Going concern
The C /'s financial stat ts have been prepared on 2 going concern basls.
The Company has performed an of its fi ial position as at March 31, 2022 and forecasts of the Company for a period of eighteen months from the date of these

financial statements {the ‘Going Concern Assessment Period’ and the 'Foreseeable Future’).

In develaping these forecasts, the Company has modelled a base case, which has been further sensitised using severe but plausible downside scenarios. The base case covers
the Going Concern A Period and iders the esti d on-going impact of the COVID-19 global pandemic and a cautious view of the impact of near-term supply
chain challenges related to global semi-conductor shortages. It alse accounts for other end-market and of factors through the Going Concern Assessment Period.
The base case assumes continued recovery in industry volumes based upon external industry forecasts. This has been further sensitized using more severe but plausible
st i fering | market fes and other factors impacting the global y and ive industry, Manag: do not consider more extreme
scenarios than the ones assessed to be plausible,

in evaluating the forecasts, the Company has taken into consideration both the sufficiency of liuidity to meet obligations as they fall due as well as potential impact on
compliance with financlal covenants during the forecast period. These forecasts indicate that, based on cash i from operations, the funding facilities, the
Company will have sufficlent liquidity to operate and discharge its liabilities as they become due, without breaching any relevant covenants and the need for any mitigating
actions.

Based on the 1 above, beli that the Company has suffi fi | resources available to it at the date of approval of these financial
statements and that it will be able to continue as a ‘going concern’ in the foreseeable future and for a period of at least September 30, 2023,

Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of fi fal in conformity with Ind AS requires to make jud i and ¥ , that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported ts of and far the
period presented, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

{ and underlyi ptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized In the perlud in which the estimate is revised
and in future periods af‘l‘etted In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical jud, in applying ace policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial stat are included in the following notes:

i) Note 4, Mote 5 and Note 6 - Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets- useful life and impairment
i) Note 24 - R bility/recog of defi ] tax assets
iii} Note 23 - Provision for product warranty
iv) Note 38- Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits

v) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19.

The World Health Organisation in February 2020 declared COVID-19 as a pandemic. Covid-19 pandemic has rapidly spread throughout the world, including India. Governments
in India and across the world have taken significant measures to ::urh the spread of the virus including datory lockd: and restrictions In activities.
Consequently, Company's manufactuﬂng plants and offices had to be closed down/foperate operate under restrtctinns for a considerable period of time during the year.
Lockdowns/restrictions have impacted the Company operationally including on commodity prices, supphf chain matters {including semlconductor supplies) and consumer
demand. More recently, the next wave of the pandemic has irnpacled India and the Company is ing the situation closely taking Into account the Increasing level of
infections in India and across the world and directives from the various Gover M t bel that it has taken into all the possible impacts of known
events arising from COVID-19 lemic in the preparation of the fi ial results incl hut not limited to its assessment of Company’s rlquldlw and going concern,
recoverable values of Its property, plant and ip t, gible assets, i ible assets under development and the net realisable values of other assets. However, given
the effect of these lockdowns and restrictions on the overall economic activity and in particular on the automotive industry, the impact assessment of COVID-19 on the

il ial I Is subject to significant estimation uncertainties due to its nature and duration and, accordingly, the actual impacts in future may
be different from those estimated as at the date of approval of these fi ial The Company will i to any material changes to future economic

conditions and consequential impact on its financial statements.

Cost recognition
Costs and expenses are recognised when incurred and are classified according to their nature. Expenditure are capitalized where appropriate, in accordance with the policy for
Iy g 11 ible assets and represents employee costs, stores and other manufacturing supplies, and other expenses incurred for construction and product

i lertaken by the Company
Mateﬂal and other cost of sales as reported in the statement of profit and loss is presented net of the impact of

ExXposures,

™ b

 foreign ge relating to derivatives hedging cost
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that any property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets with finite lives may be impaired. If any such impairment exists the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
determine the extent of impairment, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested for impairment annually at each balance sheet date, or earlier, if there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Foreign currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of Tata Motors Passenger Vebhicles

Limited. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities are re-measured into the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing on the
balance sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of transactions and translation of monetary items are recognized in the statement of
Profit or Loss except to the extent, exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency
borrowings, are capitalized as part of borrowing costs.

Segments
The Company primarily operates in the automotive segment.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:

i. Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under
Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition
date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103.

ii. Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from
selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales
proceeds and related cost in profit or loss.

iii. Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour,
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

iv. Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to
derecognise a financial liability.

v. Ind AS 116 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any
potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in
that illustration.

The Company is assessing the impact of these changes and will accordingly incorporate the same for the financial statements for the
year ended March 2023,




Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Business Combination

Pursuant to the schemes of Arrangement between Tata Motors Limited (TML, parent company) and the company, the Passenger Vehicle (PV)
undertaking of TML has been transferred as a going concern and on a slump sale basis effective January 1, 2022. As PV undertaking is transferred
from parent company, the merger has been accounted in accordance with “Pooling of Interest Method” laid down by Appendix C of Indian
Accounting Standard 103 (Ind AS 103): (Business cambinations of entities under common control), notified under the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, all assets, liabilities of PV undertaking have been recorded in the books of account of the Company at their existing carrying amounts
and in the same form. The difference, between the equity shares issued and all assets and liabilities of PV undertaking, has been debited to
Merger Deficit adjustment account. Comparative accounting period presented in the financial statements of the Company has been restated for
the accounting impact of the transfer, as stated above, as if the purchase has occurred from the beginning of the comparative period in the
financial statements i.e. April 1, 2020.

Following are the assets and liabilities taken over by the Company on January 1, 2022
(%X in crores)

Particulars As at January 1, 2022
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 5,559.61
Capital work-in-progress 733.65
Right to use assets 725.56
Other intangible assets 3,899.35
Intangible assets under development 190.58
Financial assets
(i) Investments 600.67
(i) Loans and advances 23.71
(i) Other financial assets 88.05
Other non-current assets 40.02
Total Non current Assets 11,861.20
Current Assets
Inventories 1,615.44
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 92.89
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 1,200.00
(iil} Loans and advances 22.28
(iv) Other financial assets 27.50
Other current assets 149.95
Total Current Assets 3,108.06
Total Assets 14,969.26
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 189.55
(i) Lease liabilities 640.13
(iii) Other financial liabilities 4.24
Provisions 102.85
Other non-current liabilities 137.66
Total Non current Liabilities 1,074.43
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities : 87.58
(i) Trade payables 3,822.96
(i) Acceptances 2,190.76
(iv) Other financial liabilities 204.28
Provisions 338.09
Other current liabilities 530.70
Total Current Liabilities 7,174.37
Total Liability 8,248.80
Net Assets 6,720.46
Less: Consideration paid for purchase of PV undertaking from TML —--9,417.00
Merger Deficit adjustment account 5
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3.

Re-stated Balance sheet as on March 31,2021

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Business Combination (Continued..)

(X in crores)

Year Ended March 31, 2021
Particulars Before effect of Ef:::r:::::e\;::::‘lr‘tl':::."s ?f:-s;‘: :: ::,aur::;o;st
bussiness combination
combination

Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment - 5,612.79 5,612.79
Capital work-in-progress 5.84 785.51 791.35
Right to use assets - 708.08 708.08
Other intangible assets - 3,956.64 3,956.64
Intangible assets under development 1.15 781.36 782.51
Financial assets

(i) Loans and advances - 22,61 22.61

(i) Other financial assets - 87.39 87.39
Other non-current assets - 30.74 30.74
Total Non current Assets 6.99 11,985.12 11,992.11
Current Assets
Inventories 1,022.74 1,022.74
Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables - 89.10 89.10

(if) Cash and cash equivalents 0.15 - 0.15

(iii) Loans and advances - 49,06 49.06
* (iv) Other financial assets - 26.18 26.18
Other current assets - 132.05 132.05
Total Current Assets 0.15 1,319.13 1,319.28
Total Assets 7.14 13,304.25 13,311.39
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings - 176.67 176.67

(ii) Lease liabilities - 593.26 593.26

(iii) Other financial liabilities - 0.12 0.12
Provisions - 105.92 105.92
Other non-current liabilities - 88.05 88.05
Total Non current Liabilities - 964.02 964.02
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Lease liabilities - 92.25 92.25

i) Trade payables - 1,986.53 1,986.53

(iii) Acceptances - 1,436.25 1,436.25

(iv) Other financial liabilities 16.48 178.72 195.20
Provisions - 306.42 306.42
Other current liabilities - 377.13 377.13
Total Current Liabilities 16.48 4,377.30 4,393.78
Total Liability 16.48 5,341.32 5,357.80
Net Assets (9.34) 7,962.93 7,953.59
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Business Combination (Continued..)

Re-stated Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

Revenue from operations
Revenue

Other operating revenue

Total revenue from operations
Other Income

Total Income (1+11)

Expenses

(a) Cost of materials consumed
(b) Purchases of products for sale
{c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and
products for sale

(d) Employee benefits expense

{e) Finance costs

(f) Foreign exchange loss (net)

(g) Depreciation and amortisation expense

(h) Product development/Engineering expenses

(i} Other expenses
(j) Amount transferred to capital and other accounts

Total Expenses (IV)
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (ll1-1V)

Exceptional items

(a) Employee separation cost

(b) Impairment losses/(reversal) in passenger vehicle business

(c) Provision/(reversal) for Onerous Contracts and related supplier claims
Profit/(loss) before tax (V-V1)

Tax expense (net)

(a) Current tax

(b) Deferred tax

Total tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year (VII-VIII)

Other comprehensive income/(loss):

(i) Remeasurement (losses)/gain on defined benefit obligations (net)
(i) Income tax credit/(expense) relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit and loss

Total other comprehensive income/(loss), net of taxes
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (IX+X)

(Xin crores)

Year Ended March 31, 2021

Before effect of

Effect of PV undertaking

Revised balance post

— binati purchased from TML effect of business
ussiness combination comblngtion
16,650.25 16,650.25
- 64.59 64.59
16,714.84 16,714.84
165.93 165.93
- 16,880.77 16,880.77
9430.84 9,430.84
4361.25 4,361.25
- 501.95 501.95
- 761.44 761.44
189.06 189.06
< (0.52) (0.52)
- 1670.32 1,670.32
= 558.73 558.73
9.48 1515.71 1,525.19
- (22.60) (22.60)
9.48 18,966.18 18,975.66
(9.48) (2,085.41) (2,094.89)
- 31.78 31.78
- (1,182.41) (1,182.41)
- (549.00) (549.00)
(9.48) (385.78) (395.26)
(9.48) (385.78) (395.26)
- 13.85 13.85
- (3.49) (3.49)
- 10.36 10.36
(9.48) (375.42) (384.90)
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Business Combination (Continued..)
Details of profit and loss for nine months ended December 31, 2021 of PV undertaking, which has been
included in the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 of the Company, applying

(% in crores)

9 Month of PV Profit & Loss for the
undertaking year ended March

31,2022 without
common control
adjustment

Revenue from operations
Revenue 21,313.29 11,176.57
Other operating revenue 58.36 24.02
Total revenue from operations 21,371.65 11,200.59
Other Income 164.64 29.48
Total Income (I+1) 21,536.29 11,230.07
Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 12,495.72 6,730.18
(b) Purchases of products for sale 5,576.49 3,247.07
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and products for sale 44.77 (451.29)
(d) Employee benefits expense 704.99 271.78
(e) Finance costs 147.51 68.34
(f) Foreign exchange loss (net) 8.12 3.27
(g) Depreciation and amaortisation expense 1,508.67 532.87
(h) Product development/Engineering expenses 407.75 24751
(i) Other expenses 1,787.56 631.70
{j) Amount transferred to capital and other accounts (6.78) (30.21)
Total Expenses (IV) 22,674.80 11,251.22
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (111-1V) {1,138.51) (21.15)
Exceptional items
(a) Provision for impairment of Investments in subsidiary companies (559.91) -
{b) Cost of Purchase of PV Undertaking - 251.34
Profit/(loss) before tax (V-Vi) (578.60) (272.49)
Tax expense (net)
(a) Current tax - -
(b) Deferred tax - -
Total tax expense - =
Profit/(loss) for the period (VII-VIII) (578.60) (272.49)
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(b)

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, plant and equipment

Accounting policy

Praperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Freehold land is measured at cost and Is not depreciated

Cost includes purchase price, non-recoverable taxes and duties, labour cost and direct overheads for self-constructed assets and other direct costs incurred up to the date the asset is ready
for its intended use. '

Interest cost incurred for constructed assets is capitalised up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use, based on borrowings incurred specifically for financing the asset or the
weighted average rate of all other borrowings, if no specific borrowings have been incurred for the asset.

Depreciation is provided on the Straight Line Method (SLM) over the estimated useful lives of the assets considering the nature, estimated usage, operating conditions, past history of
replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support. Taking into account these factors, the Company has decided to retain the useful life
hitherto adopted for various categaries of property, plant and equipments, which are different from those prescribed in Schedule /1 of the Act.

Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Type of Asset Estimated useful life (years)
Buildings, Roads, Bridge and culverts 4 to 60 years

Plant, machinery and equipment 81to 20 years

Computers and other IT assets 4 to 6 years

Vehicles 4 to 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and office appliances 5to 15 years

The useful lives is reviewed at each year end. Changes in expected useful lives are treated as change in accounting estimates.
Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

Anitem of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment (T in crores)
Owned assets
Land Buildings Plant, machinery Furniture Vehicles Computers
and equipments  and fixtures & other IT Total
assets
Cost as at April 1, 2021 786.74 774.63 12,368.56 44.89 48,61 53.59 14,077.02
Additions = 21.00 874.61 0.38 3.60 8.26 907.85
Disposals/adjustments - 28.08 (232.92) 22.06 (29.60) 22.49 {189.89)
Cost as at March 31, 2022 786.74 823.71 13,010.25 67.33 22,61 84.34 14,794.98
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2021 . (305.28) (8,062.42) (22.00) (31.13) (43.40) (8,464.23)
Depreciation for the year - (32.93) (752.72) (3.08) (6.37) (4.19) (799.29)
Disposal/adjustments = (21.07) 231.70 (12.88) 23.95 (16.16) 205.54
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2022 - (359.28) (8,583.44) (37.96) (13.55) (63.75) (9,057.98)
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 786.74 464.43 4,426.81 29.37 9.06 20,59 5,737.00
Assets taken on purchase of PV undertaking (815.87) (40.46) - - 1.74 - (854.59)
Cost as at April 1, 2020 1,602.61 802.27 11,927.51 61.30 53.74 52.93 14,500.36
Restated cost as at Aprll 1, 2020 786.74 761.81 11,927.51 61.30 55.48 52.93 13,645.77
Additions - 12.82 542.81 0.56 297 0.78 559,94
Disposals/adjustments - (101.76) (16.97) (9.84) (0.12) (128.69)
Cost as at March 31, 2021 786.74 774.63 12,368.56 44.89 48.61 53.59 14,077.02
Assets taken on purchase of PV undertaking - 16.33 - - {0.61) . 15.72
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2021 - (355.31) (7,839.69) (29.05) (30.99) (43.88) (8,298.92)
Restated accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2020 - (338.98) (7,839.69) (29.05) (31.60) (43.88) (8,283.20)
Depreciation for the year - (20.58) (672.23) (3.01) (8.55) (2.33) {706.70)
Reversal of Impairment loss - 56.88 468.83 0.63 1.65 2.77 530.76
Disposal/adjustments - (2.60) (19.33) 9.43 7.37 0.04 (5.09)
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2021 T - T (30528) _ (8,062.42] (22.00) (31.13] (43.40) (8,464.23)
Met carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 786.74 469.35 4,306.14 22.89 17.48 10.19 5,612.79
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(c) Capital work-in-progress For the year ended March 31,
2022 2021

Balance at the beginning 791.35 509.30
Additions 595.26 627.04
Capitalised during the year (907.86) (413.36)
(Write off)/(Provision)/reversal of impairment - 68.37
Balance at the end 478.75 791.35

e - LmTmEmoo e

(d) Ageing of tangible assets under development
(X in crores)

As at March 31, 2022
Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Whoe 3 Total
years
Projects in progress 298.81 90.11 65.40 24.43 478.75
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 298.80 90.11 65.40 24.43 478.75
As at March 31, 2021
More than 3
Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years years Total
Projects in progress 490.47 230.09 45.63 25.16 791.35
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 490.47 230.09 45.63 25.16 791.35
(e) Expected Completion schedule of tangible assets under development where
cost and time overrun has exceeded original plan As at March 31, 2022
More than 3
Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years years Total
Project 1 138.71 - - - 138.71
Project 2 23.07 - - - 23.07
Project 3 13.74 - - - 13.74
Project 4 12,97 - - - 12.97
Project 5 12.90 - - - 12.90
Project 6 7.13 - - - 713
Project 7 4.48 - - - 4.48
Project 8 2,24 - - B 2.24
Project 9 1.91 - - - 1.91
Project 10 0.02 - - - 0.02
As at March 31, 2022 21717 - - - 217.17
As at March 31, 2021
More than 3
Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years vears Total
Project 1 23.79 6.00 * - 29.79
Project 2 - 4.12 - - 4.12
Project 3 97.86 25.23 - - 123.09
Project 4 12.26 8.90 - - 21.16
Project 5 272,29 141.00 - - 413.29
As at March 31, 2021 406.20 185.25 - - 591.45

Original plan is considered as that plan which is approved and on the basis of which implementation progress is evaluated. Such original plan includes management’s
estimates and assumptions w.r.t future business, economy / industry and regulatory environments.
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(2)

Tata Motors Passenger Vehides Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited”)
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Leases
Accounting policy
Lessee:
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a conteact Is, of contain a lease. A contract 15, of contains, a Jease if the contract conveys th right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
axchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

1§ The cantract involves the use of an Identified asset —this may be specified explictly or Implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has
a substantive substation right, then the asset is not identified;

ii) The Company has the right to substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the ssset throughout the period of use; and

b,

ij The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purposes the asset is used. In rare cases
where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset Is used is predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset If either:
. The Company has the right to operate the asset; or
. The Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purposes it will be used,

As @ practical expedient, Ind AS 116 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for any lease and iated non-lease comp @5 a single arrangement. The Company has not used
this practical i At or on of @ contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of thair relative stand
slone prices.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease lisbility at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises of the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for

d dilapidation costs, less any lease incentives received, The right-of-use asset is tised

any lease paymants made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs i d and

using the stralght-line method over the shorter of the useful life of the leased asset or the period of lease. If ownership of the leased asset is automatically transferred at the end of the lease term or the exercise of a

purchase option Is reflected in the lease payments, the right-of-use asset Is amortised on a straightline hasis over the expected uselul life of the leased assot.

The lease labllity is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not pald at commencement date, discounted using, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. The loase liability is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, it is re measured when there is a change in future lease payments,

Lease p Include fixed f ie. d to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantee, the exercise price of a purchase optian if the Company (s reasanably certuln to exercise that
option and p of Ities for ter g the lease if the lease term considered reflects that the Company shall exercise tarmination option. The Company also recognises a right of use asset which comprises of
amount of initlal measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct cost incurred by the Company and estimated dilapidation costs.

Payment made towards short term leases (leases for which non-cancellable term is 12 months or lesser) and low value assets (lease of assets worth less than %0.03 crore) are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss
as rental expenses over the tenor of such leases.

Lessor:
At the inception of a lease, the lease arrangement is classified as either a finance lease or an eperating lease, based on | terms & sul of the lease Wh the tarms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income 15 allocated to accounting periods 5o as to reflect o
constant perlodic rate of returm on the Company's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases

Rental income from operating leases Is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initisl direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease tarm.

The Company leases 2 number of plant and IT hard: and softy assets, certain of which have a renewal and/er purchase aption in the normal course of the business. Extension and termination
options are included in a number of leases across the Company. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Company and net by the respective lessor. The Company assesses al
lease commencement whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension or termination option. The Company re-assesses whether it s reasonably certain to exercise options il there is a significant event ot

i change in ¢ within its control. It is ised that there is ial for lease term assumptions to change in the future due to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and this will continue to be
maonitored by the Company where relevant. The Company's leases mature between 2022 and 2029,

When measuring leasa llability, the Group d lease using its | borrowing rate at April 1, 2020, The welghted average rate applied is 8.39 %, (2021: 8.58 %)
The following amounts are included in the Balance Sheet : (% in crores)
As at March 31,2022 As at March 31, 2021
Current lease liabilities 95.07 92.25
Non-current lease liabilities 649.34 503.26
Total lease liabilities 748.41 685.51
e
The followi gnised in the of profit and loss : [% in crores)
Year ended March Year anded March 31,
31, 2022 2001

Interest expense on lease liabilities 57.36 44.64
Expenses related to short-term leases 0,91 -

related to lue assets, excluding short-term leases of | lue assets 285 0.65




Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Leases (Continued)

(¢} Leases
(% in crores)
Land Buildings Plant, machinery and Vehicles Computers & Total
equipments other IT assets
Cost as at April 1, 2021 29.66 130.79 730.60 10,92 7.81 909.78
Additions - 29.92 107.28 30.76 0.38 168.34
Disposals/adjustments - (23.72) - - (0.42) (24.14)
Cost as at March 31, 2022 29.66 136,99 837.88 41.68 7.77 1,053.98
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2021 (0.78) (44,39) (150.13) (0.75) (5.67) (201.72)
Amortisation for the year {0.39) (21.70) (96.52) E {0.80) (119.41)
A Isation - ¢ {ered as employee cost - - - [8.54) . (8.54)
Disposal/adjustments - 11.67 - 0.55 0.42 12,64
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2022 (1.17) (54.42) (246.65) (8.74) 6.05) (317.03)
Net carrylng amount as at March 31, 2022 28.49 _;I_Z_.E‘? 591.23 32.94 1.72 736.95
Common contral merger adjustments - 31.28 - - - 3128
Cost as at April 1, 2020 29.66 99.26 368.74 - 5.36 503.02
Restated cost as at April 1, 2020 29.66 130.54 368.74 - 5.36 534,30
Additions - 14.81 385.02 10,92 245 413,20
Disposals/adjustments - 114.56) (23.16) - - {37.72)
Cost as at March 31, 2020 29.66 130.79 730.60 10.92 7.81 909,78
Commaon control merger adjustments - (8.69) - - - (8.69)
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2020 (0.39) (32.90) (107.20) - (4.80) (145.29)
Restated accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2020 (0.39) (41.59) (107.20) - (4.80) (153.98)
Amortisation for the year (0.39) (18.94) {78.66) = (0.92) (98.91)
Amortisation - considered as employee cost - - - (0.75) - (0.75)
Reversal of Impairment Loss - 6.81 3133 - 0.05 38.19
Disposal/adjustments - 9.33 4.40 - - 13.73
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2021 (0.78) (44.39) twlﬂ (0.75) (5.67) (201.72)
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 28,88 86.40 580.47 10.17 2.14 708.06
{d) There are certain vehicles which are being given to the ¢ along with operations and of the same. These are accounted as finance lease as the material risks and rewards are transferred to the
lessee.
The average effective interest rate contracted approximates 12.5 per cent (2021: 12.5 per cent) per annum.
The foll g are included in the Balance Sheet : (% in crores)
As at March 31,2022 As at March 31, 2021
Current lease receivables 12,67 12.50
Nen-current lease receivables 67.34 80.23
Total lease recelvables £0.01 92.73
—
The following are recognised in the of profit and loss : [% In crores)
Year ended March Year ended March 31,
31,2022 2021
Finance income on the net investment in finance leases 15.69 17.80
The table below provides details regarding the | maturities of finance lease liabilities:
As at March 31, 2022 (% in crores)
Duein3”tos" Total contractual
Due in 1" Year Due in 2™ Year Year Due after Sth Year cash flows
Finance lease receivables 12.68 13.01 54,32 - 80,01
As at March 31, 2021 (% In crores)
duein3”to 5" Total contractual
Due in 1" Year Due in 2™ Year Year Due after 5th Year cash flows
Finance lease receivables 12,49 12.67 67.57 * 92.73
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(a)

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other Intangible assets

Accounting policy
Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost or fair value as on the date of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and impairment,
if any.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the intangible assets as per details below:

Estimated amortisation period
Software 4 years

The amortisation period for intangible assets with finite useful lives is reviewed at each year-end. Changes in expected useful lives are
treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Internally generated intangible asset
Research costs are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Product development costs incurred on new vehicle platform, engines, transmission and new products are recognised as intangible assets,
when feasibility has been established, the Company has committed technical, financial and other resources to complete the development
and it is probable that asset will generate future economic benefits,

The cost of an internally generated intangible asset is the sum of directly attributable expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria to the completion of its development.

Interest cost incurred is capitalised up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use, based on borrowings incurred specifically for
financing the asset or the weighted average rate of all other borrowings if no specific borrowings have been incurred for the asset.

Product development costs is amortised over the life of the related product, being a period of 24 months to 120 months.

Product development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. Amortisation is not recorded
on product engineering in progress until development is complete.

Derecognition of intangible assets
An item of intangible assets is derecognized on disposal or when fully amortized and no longer in use. Any gain or loss arising from
derecognition of an item of intangible assets is included in profit or loss.
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehlcles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Other | gible assets (Continued)
(b) Other Intangible assets (% in crores)
Computer Product Total
Software develop
Cost as at April 1, 2021 36.12 7,115.82 7,151.94
Additions 11.50 860.84 872.34
Fully amortised not in use - (615.37) (615.37)
Disposals/adjustments 46.56 - 46,56
Cost as at March 31, 2022 94.18 7,361.29 7,455.47
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2021 (35.84) (3,159.46) (3,195.30)
Amortisation for the year (1.28) (1,121.56) (1,122.84)
Fully amortised not in use - 615.36 615.36
Disposals/adjustments [43.49) - (43.49)
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2022 (80.61) (3,665.66) (3,746.27)
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 13,57 3,695.63 3,709.20
Cost as at April 1, 2020 36.04 6,585.67 6,621.71
Additions 0.08 530.15 530.23
Cost as at March 31, 2021 36.12 7,115.82 7,151.94
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2020 (35.64) (2,708.82) (2,744.46)
Amortisation for the year (0.20) (879.72) (879.92)
Reversal of Impairment loss - 429.08 429.08
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2021 (35.84) (3,159.46) (3,195.30)
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 0.28 3,956.36 3,956.64
{c)  Intangible assets under development For the year ended March 31,
2022 2021
Balance at the beginning 782.51 892,51
Additions 387.93 304.22
Capitalised during the year (872.34) (530.23)
(Write off)/{Provision)/reversal of impairment (0.01) 116.01
Balance at the end 298.09 782.51
(d)  Ageing of intangible assets under development
(% In crores)
As at March 31, 2022
More than 3
Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years - Total
Projects in progress 269.40 25,37 3.32 ~ 298,09
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 269.40 25.37 3.32 - 298.09
As at March 31, 2021
More than 3
Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years o Total
Projects in progress 286.36 145.28 116.25 234,62 782.51
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 186.36 145.28 116.25 234,62 782.51

(@ expected Completion schedule of Intangible assets under development where cost and time overrun has exceeded original plan
e

As at March 31, 2022
More than 3
1 - 23
Up to 1 year 1-2 years years TS Total
Project 1 771 - - . .1
Project 2 - 4.18 - - 4.18
Project 3 56.62 - - - 56.62
64.33 4.18 = - 68.51
As at March 31, 2021
More than 3
1 5, 23 Tot.
Up to 1 year 1-2 years years e al
Project 1 42,72 - - - 42.72
Project 2 - - - 457 4.57
Project 3 594.76 - - - 594.76
637.48 - - 4.57 642.05

T4ih Moy,
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")

Loans and advances- non current

Unsecured :
(a) Loans to employees-Considered Good

(b) Others-Considered Good
Total

Loans and advances- current

Unsecured :
(a) Advances and other receivables

(net of allowances for credit impaired balances of % 1.00 crores and <1.00 crores as at March 31,

2022 and 2021, respectively)
(b) Intercorporate deposits
Considered good

(c) Dues from fellow subsidiary companies
Considered good
Total

Note:

Dues from Holding company and it's fellow subsidiary companies:

(a) Tata Motors Limited

(b) Tata Passenger Electric Mobility Limited

(c) Tata Motors European Technical Centre PLC
Total

Other financial assets - non-current

{a) Finance lease receivable
(b) Recoverable from suppliers
(£} Others

Total

Other financial assets - current

(a) Derivative financial instruments
(b} Interest accrued on loans and deposits
(c) Finance lease receivable
(d) Recoverable from suppliers
(e) Security deposits
Total

Other non-current assets
{a) Capital advances

(b} Others
Total

Other current assets

(a) Advance to suppliers and contractors

(net of allowances for credit impaired balances of X11.93 crores and % 10.66 crores as at March 31, 2022 and

2021, respectively)

{b) Taxes recoverable, statutory deposits and dues from government (net of allowances for credit impaired
balances of % 0.32 crores and % 0.32 crores as at March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively)

(c) Prepaid expenses
(d) Employee benefits
(e} Others

Total

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(% in crores
As at March 31,

2022 2021
16.90 13.42
10.21 9.19
27.11 22,61

As at March 31,

2022 2021

23.52 6.24
1,770.00

31.85 42.82
1,825.37 49.06

As at March 31,

2022 2021
31.66 =
0.19 -
- 42.82
31.85 42.82
As at March 31,
2022 2021
67.34 80.23
4.72 1.44
7.99 5.72
80.05 87.39
As at March 31,
2022 2021
28.78 )
0.06 -
12,67 12.50
13.57 13.59
0.12 0.09
55.20 26.18
As at March 31,
2022 2021
18.75 30.67
3.24 0.07
21.99 30.74
As at March 31,
2022 2021
24.88 3.24
225.08 115.86
85.46 12.90
1.60 =
0.04 P
337.06 7
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13.

14.

15.

16.

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Inventories

{(a) Accounting policy

(Xin crores)

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials, components and consumables are ascertained
on a moving weighted average basis. Cost, including fixed and variable production overheads, are allocated to work-in-progress and
finished goods determined on a full absorption cost basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business less estimated cost of completion and selling expenses.

(b) Inventories

(a) Raw materials and components

(b) Work-in-progress

(c) Finished goods

(d) Stores and spare parts

(e) Consumable tools

(f) Goods-in-transit - Raw materials and components
Total

As at March 31,

2022 2021
987.85 561.49
164.08 115.56
287.59 207.77

46.80 34.61
14,70 11.48
91.45 91.83
1,592.47 1,022.74

During the year ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company recorded inventory write-down expenses of X9.16 crores and (6.64)

crores, respectively.

Cost of inventories (including cost of purchased products) recognized as expense during the year ended March 31, 2022 and 2021

amounted to %31,373.01 crores and X17,190.27 crores, respectively.
Trade receivables (unsecured)

Receivables considered good
Credit impaired receivables

Less : Allowance for credit impaired receivables
Total

Allowance for trade receivables, loans and other receivables

Balance at the beginning
Allowances made during the year

Provision for loan/intercorporate deposits given to fellow subsidiary companies

Written off
Balance at the end

Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Accounting policy

As at March 31,

2022 2021
184.89 89.10
160.66 158.25
345.55 247.35
(160.66) (158.25)
184.89 89.10

For the year ended March 31,

2022 2021
170.23 192.28
3.68 7.69

= (19.55)

5 (10.19)
173.91 170.23

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of up to three
month that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

(i) Cheques on hand
(i) Balances with banks (refer note below)
(iii) Deposits with banks

Total

F-20

As at March 31,
2022 2021
18.97 -
183.93 0.15
220.00 -
422.90 0.15
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19.

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited”)
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Equity Share Capital

(a) Authorised:
20,00,00,00,000 Ordinary shares of ® 10 each
(as at March 31, 2021: 150,000 Ordinary shares of £10 each)
Total

Issued:

9,417,150,000 Ordinary shares of 210 each

(as at March 31, 2021: 150,000 Ordinary shares of %10 each)
Total

(b]

() Subscribed and paid up:
9,417,150,000 Ordinary shares of 210 each
{as at March 31, 2021: 150,000 Ordinary shares of %10 each)

{d) The movement of number of shares and share capital

(i) Ordinary shares
Balance as at April 1
Add: Issued during the year [ Part of subscription to memorandum of
association)

Add: Allotment of shares on account of Demerger Scheme (Refer note 3)

Balance as at March 31

(e]

Ordinary shares :
{a) TML Business Services Limited {formerly Concorde Motors (India) Limited)
{b) Tata Motors Limlted

) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
Promoter name
{a) TML Business Services Limited (formerly Concorde Mators (India) Limited)
(b) Tata Motors Limited
* Less than 1%

(e

Information regarding Issue of shares in the last five years

{a) During the current year, the company has issued 9,417,000,000 shares without
(b) The Company has not issued any bonus shares.

{c) The Company has not undertaken any buy-back of shares.

Long-term borrowings

Secured:
Term loans:
Government loan (refer note (i) below)
Total

Short-term borrowings
Secured:

Loans from banks

Information regarding long-term borrowings
(i) Nature of security (on loans including interest accrued th ):

Number of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent of the Issued share capital :

(% In crores)
As at March 31, Yea

2022 2021

20,000.00 0.15

20,000.00 0.15

9,417.15 0.15

9,417.15 0.15

9,417.15 9,417.15

9,417.15 9,417.15

Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021
(No. of shares) {%in crores) (No. of st ) (% in crores)
1,50,000 0.15 - .

- - 1,50,000 0.15
9,417,000,000 9,417.00 = '
94#?1,50.000 9,417.15 1,50,000 0.15

======
Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021
{No. of shares) (% in crores) {No. of shares) (% In crores)
150,000 100.00% 150,000
100.00% 941,70,00,000 - -
Period ended March 31, 2022 Period ended March 31, 2021
(No. of shares) % of Issued (No. of shares) % of Issued
Share Capital Share Capital
150,000* - 150,000 100%
9,417,000,000 100%
being ived in cash, p to scheme of demerger (Refer note 3 )
(% in crores)
As at March 31,
2022 2021
193.84 176,67
193.84 176.67
As at March 31,
2022 2021
2.28 -
2.28 =
—

The term loan of % 587.08 crores (recorded in books at % 193,84 crores) is due for repayment from the quarter ending March 31, 2033 to quarter ending March 31, 2039,
along with simple interest at the rate of 0.10% p.a. The loan is secured by a second and subservient charge (creation of charge is under process) over Company's freehold

land together with immovable properties, plant and

y and other

Reconclliation of movements of liabllities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Balance at April 1, 2020
Amortisation / EIR adjust
Balance at March 31, 2021

ts of prepaid borrowings (net)

Balance at March 31, 2021
4 J EIR adjust
Balance at March 31, 2022

ts of prepaid borrowings (net)

Short-term Long-term
borrowing bor ings
- 161.00
= (161.00)
- 193.84
2.28 193.84

F-21

ble assets (excluding stock and book debts) situated at Sanand plant in the State of Gujarat.

(% in crores)
Total
161.00
(161.00) =,
VA
193.84
196.12 ,
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 Trade payables

21,

22.

Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
(a) Undisputed dues
Total

Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small
enterprises

Undisputed dues

Total

(a

Balance as at March 31, 2022

Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Undisputed dues
Total

(a

Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small
enterprises

Undisputed dues

Total

(a

Balance as at March 31, 2021

Other financial liabilities — non-current

Rental Deposit
Others
Total

Other financial liabilities — current

(a) Liability for capital expenditure (refer note below)
(b} Deposits and retention money

(c) Derivative financial instruments

(d) Others

Note:

As at March 31, 2022

(% in crores)

Not due Overdue
T
p to 1 yea years y yeors
22.58 9.29 0.24 0.23 0.69 33.03
22.58 9.29 0.24 0.23 0.69 33.03
3,460.16 774.19 2.36 2.56 18.24 4,257.51
3,460.16 774.19 2.36 2.56 18.24 4,257.51
3,482.74 783.48 2.60 2.79 18.93 4,290.54
(% in crores)
As at March 31, 2021
Not due Overdue
M th Total
Up to 1year 1-2years 2-3years A5 3
years
7.30 6.34 0.65 0.24 2.02 16.55
7.30 6.34 0.65 0.24 2.02 16.55
1,713.26 197.50 26.88 9.45 22.89 1,969.98
1,713.26 197.50 26.88 9.45 22,89 1,969.98
1,720.56 203.84 27.53 9.69 24.91 1i936.53

(% in crores)

As at March 31,
2022 2021
2.76 .
0.12 0.12
2.88 0.12

(X in crores)

As at March 31,
2022 2021
62.66 81.27
100.93 103.96
13.94 .
- 9.97
177.53 185.20

Includes X 2.58 crores (X9.73 crores as at March 31, 2021) outstanding towards principal and interest provision on dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises as per MSMED ACT 2006.
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23.

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Provisions
(a) Accounting policy
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. When
the effect of the time value of money ismaterial, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability.
Product warranty expenses
The estimated liability for product warranties is recognised when products are sold or when new warranty programmes are
initiated. These estimates are established using historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of
warranty claims and management estimates regarding possible future warranty claims, customer goodwill and recall
complaints. The timing of outflows will vary depending on when warranty claim will arise, being typically up to six years.
The Company also has back- toback contractual arrangement with its suppliers in the event that a vehicle fault is proven to
be a supplier’s fault.
Estimates are made of the expected reimbursement claim based upon historical levels of recoveries from supplier, adjusted
for inflation and applied to the population of vehicles under warranty as on Balance Sheet date. Supplier reimbursements
are recognised as separate asset.
Provision for onerous obligations
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract
are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting its obligations under the contract. It is recognized when the Company has
entered into a binding legal agreement for the purchase of components from suppliers that exceeds the benefits from the
expected future use of the components and the Company sells the finished goods using the components at a loss.
(% in crores)
(b) Provisions-non current As at March 31,
2022 2021
(i) Employee benefits obligations 122.38 89.80
(ii) Warranty 16.70 16.12
Total 139.08 105.92
(% in crores)
(c) Provisions-current As at March 31,
2022 2021
(i) Warranty 119.01 76.40
(ii) Provision for onerous contract and related supplier claims 219.36 228.00
(iii) Employee benefits obligations 2.85 2.02
Total 341.22 306.42
Note
Onerous contract and Warranty provision movement (X in crores)
Year ended March 31,
2022
Onerous contract Warranty
Balance at the beginning 228.00 92.52
Provision/(reversal) made during the year (8.64) 165.01
Provision used during the year - (121.82)
Balance at the end 219.36 135.71
Current 219.36 119.01
Non-current - 16.70
4
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income taxes
Accounting policy
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss except when they

relate to items that are recognised outside of profit and loss (whether in other comprehensive income or directly in equity), in which case tax is also

recognised outside profit and loss. Current income taxes are determined based on respective taxable income of each taxable entity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases, and unutilised business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are computed separately for each taxable entity, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that future taxable income will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be
utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Current and deferred tax

assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate

to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The reconciliation of income tax expense calculated as per tax rates applicable to individual entities with income tax expense is as follows:

(% in crores)
Year ended March 31,

2022 2021
Profit/(loss) before tax (851.09) (395.26)
Income tax expense at tax rates applicable to individual entities (214.20) (138.12)
Deferred tax assets not recognized for common control transactions 145.62 134.81
Deferred tax assets not recognized as realisation is not probable 115.40 -
Others (46.55) 3.31
Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss 0.26 0.00

Note:

The company has decided to opt for the New Tax Regime inserted by section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and enacted by the
Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (“the Ordinance”) which is applicable from Financial Year beginning April 1, 2019. It has
accordingly applied the tax rates as applicable under the provisions of section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961 in the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2022.

(¢) Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:

Opening Recognised in Recognised Closing
balance profit and loss in/reclassifie balance
d from OCI
Deferred tax assets:
Compensated absences and retirement benefits (3.49) (0.26) 3.75 -
Total deferred tax assets (3.49) (0.26) 3.75 -
Total deferred tax liabilities - - * -
Net Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (3.49) (0.26) 3.75 -

As at March 31, 2022, unrecognised deferred tax assets amount to 714.43 crores which can be carried forward indefinitely. These relate primarily to
depreciation carry forwards and other deductible temporary difference. The deferred tax asset has not been recognised on the basis that its recovery is

not probable in the foreseeable future. /‘-f —
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24. Income taxes (Continued)

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
Compensated absences and retirement

(Xin crores)

Total deferred tax assets

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)

25. Other non-current liabilities

(a) Contract liabilities (note (a) below)
(b) Employee Benefit Obligations - Funded

26. Other current liabilities

Total

(a) Contract liabilities (note (a) below)
(b) Statutory dues (GST,Property Tax, TDS, TCS etc)

(c) Others

Note:

(a) Contract liabilities
Opening contract liabilities
Amount recognised in revenue
Amount received in advance during the year
Amount refunded to customers
Closing contract liabilities

Total

Advances received from customers
Deferred revenue

Opening Recognised in Recognised Closing balance
balance profit and loss in/reclassified
from OCI
- - (3.49) (3.49)
- - (3.49) (3.49)
- - (3.49) (3.49)
As at March 31,
2022 2021
178.51 88.05
1.46 -
179.97 88.05
As at March 31,
2022 2021
623.42 346.66
265.63 *
20.06 30.47
909.11 377.13
As at March 31,
2022 2021
434,71 232.25
(261.01) (143.37)
628.23 352.01
. (6.18)
801.93 434,71
As at March 31,
2022 2021
Current 535.61 253.32
Current 87.81 93.34
Non-current 178.51 88.05
801.93 434.71

F-25
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly § as "TML Busi Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue recognition
Accounting policy
The Company generates revenue principally from-

i} Sale of products - passenger vehicles and vehicle parts
The Company recognises revenues on the sale of products, net of discounts, sales incentives, customer bonuses and rebates granted, when products aredelivered to dealers

or when delivered to a carrier for export sales, which is when control including risks and rewards and title of ownership pass to the customer.

The Company offers sales incentives in the form of variable marketing expense to customers, which vary depending on the timing and customer of any subsequent sale of
the vehicle. This sales incentive is accounted for as ar reduction and is constrained to a level that is highly probable not to reverse the amount of revenue recognised
when any associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The Company estimates the expected sales incentive by market and considers uncertainties including competitor
pricing, ageing of retailer stock and local market conditions.

The consideration received in respect of transport arrangements for delivering of vehicles to the customers are recognised net of their costs within
revenues in the income statement.

Revenues are recognised when collectability of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.

ii} Sale of services - maintenance service and extended warranties for passenger vehicles.

Income from sale of maintenance services and extended warranties are recognised as income over the relevant period of service or extended warranty.

When the Company sells products that are bundled with maintenance service or extended period of warranty, such services are treated as a separate performance
obligation only if the service or warranty is optional to the customer or includes an additional service component. In such cases, the transaction

price allocated towards such maintenance service or extended period of warranty is recognised as a contract liability until the service obligation has been met.

The Company operates certain customer loyalty programs under which customer is entitled to reward points on the spend towards Company’s products. The reward points
earned by customers can be redeemed to claim discounts on future purchase of certain products or services. Transaction price allocated towards reward points granted to

customers s recognised as a deferred income liability and transferred to income when customers redeem their reward points.

Sales of services include certain performance obligations that are satisfied over a period of time. Any amount received in advance in respect of such performance

obligations that are satisfied over a period of time is recorded as a contract liability and recorded as revenue when service is rendered to customers.

Refund liabilities comprise of obligation towards customers to pay for discounts and sales incentives.

Gmgson (Fast),
N Mol - 100 063
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(X in crores)
27. (b) Revenue From Operations Year ended March 31,
2022 2021
(a) Sale of products (refer note 1 below)
(i) Vehicles 26,240.88 13,302.44
(ii) Spare parts 1,408.78 934.59
(iii) Miscellaneous products 4,674.13 2,321.50
Total Sale of products 32,323.79 16,558.53
(b) Sale of services 166.07 91.72
Revenue 32,489.86 16,650.25
(c) Other operating revenues 82.38 64.59
Total 32,572.24 16,714.84
Note:
(1) Includes variable marketing expenses netted off against revenue 812.60 661.14
28. Other income

(a) Accounting policy
Government Grants and Incentives
Other income includes export and other recurring and non-recurring incentives from Government (referred as “incentives”).

Government grants are recognised when there is a reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the relevant conditions and the
grant will be received.

Government grants are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, either on a systematic basis when the Company recognises, as
expenses, the related costs that the grants are intended to compensate or, immediately if the costs have already been incurred. Government
grants related to assets are deferred and amortised over the useful life of the asset. Government grants related to income are presented as
an offset against the related expenditure, and government grants that are awarded as incentives with no ongoing performance obligations to

the Company are recognised as income in the period in which the grant is received.
(X in crores)

(b) Otherincome Year ended March 31,
2022 2021
(a) Interestincome 55.64 34.72
(b) Government incentives 138.48 131.21
Total 194.12 165.93
(Xin crores)
29. Employee benefits expense Year ended March 31,
2022 2021
(a) Salaries, wages and bonus 800.29 640.30
(b) Contribution to provident fund and other funds 53.37 47.59
(c) Staff welfare expenses 123.11 73.55
976.77 761.44
(X in crores)
30. Finance costs Year ended March 31,
2022 2021
(a) Interest 98.26 85.39
Less: Transferred to capital account (7.54) -
) 90.72 85.39
(b) Discounting charges 125.13 103.67
215.85 189.06
Note:
The weighted average rate for capitalisation of interest relating to general borrowings were approximately 8.85% for the y%ﬁe:EMa
2022 and March 31, 2021 /Q)ﬁlr iy
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31.

32.

33

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(¥ in crores)

Other expenses Year ended March 31,
2022 2021
(a) Processing charges 306.43 163.20
(b) Consumption of stores & spare parts 138.61 98.03
(c) Power and fuel 154.74 105.66
(d) Freight, transportation, port charges etc. 228.00 133.38
(e) Publicity 418.74 306.29
(f)  Warranty expenses * 165.01 67.93
(g) Information technology/computer expenses 108.17 75.71
(h) Allowances made/(reversed) for trade and other receivables (net) 0.34 (5.02)
()  Works operation and other expenses (note below) 899.22 580.01
Total 2,419.26 1,525.19
Note: (% in crores)
Works operation and other expenses include: Year ended March 31,
2022 2021
{a) Auditors' Remuneration {excluding GST)
(i)  Audit Fees 1.50 0.05
(ii)  Other Services - 0.10
(X in crores)
Amount transferred to capital and other accounts Year ended March 31,
2022 2021
(a) Capital work in progress (11.16) (22.60)
(b) Intangible asset under development (13.03) -
(¢) Product development/Engineering expenses 12.80) -
Total 36.99) (22.60)

Commitments and contingencies

Contingent Liability of the company as at March 31, 2022 is X Nil ( as at 31st March-21 X Nil)
Commitments
The Company has entered into various contracts with vendors and contractors for the acquisition of plant and machinery, equipment and various

civil contracts of a capital nature amounting to ¥637.20 crores as at March 31, 2022 (¥Nil as at March 31, 2021), which are yet to be executed.

The Company has entered into various contracts with vendors and contractors for the acquisition of intangible assets of a capital nature
amounting to %99.48 crores as at March 31, 2022, (% Nil crores as at March 31, 2021), which are yet to be executed.

The Company has contractual obligation towards Purchase Commitment (net of provisions) for %4,108.00 crores as at March 31, 2022 (Nil as at
March 31, 2021)

Earnings/(loss) per Share (“EPS”)
(a) Accounting policy
Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Partly paid up shares are included as fully paid equivalents according to the fraction paid up. Diluted earnings per share has been computed

using the weighted average number of shares and dilutive potential shares, except where the result would be antidilutive.

(b) EPS Year ended March 31,
2022 2021

(a) Profit/(loss) after tax % cror (851.35) (395.26)
(b) The weighted average number of Ordinary shares for P

Basic EPS (Refer Note below) Nos.  9,417,150,000 ,/78417,150,00
(c) The nominal value per share g 10 7 ‘Q>“//1 1 Ay,
(d) Earnings per share (Basic) g (0.90); / g u

% '

(e) Earnings per share (Diluted) F-28
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35.

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial instruments
(a) Accounting policy

U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Recognition:
A financlal instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial instruments are recognised on the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Initial measurement

Initially, a financial instrument is recognised at its fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial instruments are recognised in
determining the carrying amount, if it is not classified as at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs of financial instruments carried at fair value through profit or loss
are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequently, financial instruments are measured according to the category in which they are classified.

Classification and measurement - financial assets

Classification of financial assets is based on the business model in which the instruments are held as well as the characteristics of their contractual cash flows. The business
model is based on management’s intentions and past pattern of transactions. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest. The Company reclassifies financial assets when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Financial assets are classified into three categories

Financial assets at amortised cost: Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold such assets in order to collect such contractual cash flows are classified in this
category. Subsequently, these are measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method less any impairment losses.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Debt instruments): Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on specified dates, to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold such assets in order to collect
such contractual cash flows as well as to sell the financial asset, are classified in this category. Subsequently, these are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
being recognised in other comprehensive income apart from any expected credit losses or foreign exchange gains or losses, which are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through

profit and loss are immediately recognised in profit and loss.

Classification and measurement - financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost unless they meet the specific criteria to be recognised at fair value through profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at fair value with gains or
losses being recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss: Derivatives, including embedded derivatives separated from the host contract, unless they are designated as hedging
instruments, for which hedge accounting Is applied, are classified into this category. These are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
Profit and Loss,

Financial guarantee contracts: These are initially measured at their fair values and, are subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined or the
amaunt initially recognised less, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Other financial liabilities: These are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Determination of fair value:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price (fair value of the consideration given or received).

In estimating the fair value of an asset or lability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date,

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company determines the fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets using the quoted bid prices {financial assets
held) or quoted ask prices (financial liabilities held) and using valuation techniques for other instruments. Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow method and other
valuation methods.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:
The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. When a financial instrument is derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss in equity Is transferred to the statement of profit and loss unless it was an equity instrument electively held at fair value through other comprehensive income. In this case,
any cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to retained earnings. Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company

reviews the facts and circumstances around each asset before making a determination. Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities.
Financial liabilities are decrecognised when these are extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or has expired.

Impairment of financial assets:
The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset that is at amortised cost or at fair value through other cnmg@ﬁve

credit losses are forward looking and are measured in a way that is unbiased and represents a probability-weighted amount, takes into accoun e;ﬁe
T4th Fioor,
enlral

Ui

are discounted using the applicable effective interest rate) and uses reasonable and supportable information.
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Tata Motors P

35, Disclosures on financial instruments (Continued)
Fair Value Hierarchy

L)

Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to Initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as described

below.

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): This level of hierarchy includes financial instruments that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for tdentical assets or liabilities.

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2); This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e; as prices) or indirectly (i.e; derived from prices). This level of hierarchy include Company's over-the-

counter (OTC) derivative contracts.

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs), Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices
from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

There has been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the year ended March 31, 2022 and 2021,

Derivatives are fair valued using market observable rates and published prices together with forecast cash flow information where applicable.

Financial assets measured at fair value
(a) Derivative assets

Total
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
(a) Derivative liabilities

Total

There was no Financial assets or Liabilities which were to be measured at fair value for March 31,2021

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

{a) Long-term borrowings (including Current maturities of long-term borrowings)

(b) Short-term borrowings
Total

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

(a) Long-term borrowings (including Current maturities of long-term borrowings)

(b) Short-term borrowings
Total

There was no Financial assets which were to be not measured at fair value for March 31,2021

(% In crores)

As at March 31, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- 28,78 - 28.78
- 28.78 - 28,78
- 13.94 - 13.94
- 13.94 - 13.94
(% in crores)
As at March 31, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- 215.01 - 215,01
- 2.28 - 2.28
- 217.29 - 217.29
(X in crores)
As at March 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
176.67 - 176.67
- 176.67 - 176.67

Other short-term financial assets and liabilities are stated at amortised cost which is approximately equal to their fair value.
The fair value of borrowings which have a quoted market price in an active market is based on its market price and for other borrowings the fair value is estimated by discounting
expected future cash flows, using a discount rate equivalent to the risk-free rate of return, adjusted for the credit spread considered by the lenders for instruments of similar

maturity.

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore,
substantially for all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of all the amounts that the Company could have realised or paid in
sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, the fair value of the financial instruments subsequent to the respective reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported

at each year end.
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35.

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")

Offsetting

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Disclosures on financial instruments (Continued)

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are subject to offsetting where there is currently a legally enforceable right to set off recognised
amounts and the Company intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability, simultaneously.

Certain derivative financial assets and financial liabilities are subject to master netting arrangements, whereby in the case of insolvency,
derivative financial assets and financial liabilities will be settled on a net basis.

The following table discloses the amounts that have been offset, in arriving at the balance sheet presentation and the amounts that are available
for offset only under certain conditions as at March 31, 2022:

Financial assets
(a) Derivative financial instruments
(b) Trade receivables
(c) Loans and advances-current
Total
Financial liabilities
(a) Derivative financial instruments
(b) Trade payables
(c) Other financial liabilities
Total

(X in crores)

Gross Gross amount Net amount Amounts subject to an Net amount

amount recognisedas  presentedin  enforceable master netting after

recognised set off in the the balance arrangement offsetting
balance sheet sheet
Financial Cash
instruments collateral
(received/pl
edged)

28.78 - 28.78 (7.26) - 21.52
648.86 (463.97) 184.89 - - 184.89
1,797.87 27.50 1,825.37 - - 1,825.37
2,475.51 (436.47) 2,039.04 (7.26) B 2,031.78
13.94 - 13.94 (7.26) - 6.68
4,727.01 (436.47) 4,290.54 - - 4,290.54
177.53 E 177.53 - - 177.53
4,918.48 (436.47) 4,482.01 (7.26) - 4,474.75

The following table discloses the amounts that have been offset in arriving at the balance sheet presentation and the amounts that are available
for offset only under certain conditions as at March 31, 2021:

Financi ets
(a) Trade receivables
(b) Loans and advances-current
Total
Financial liabilities
(a) Trade payables
(b) Other financial liabilities
Total

(X in crores)
Gross Gross amount Net amount Amounts subject to an Net amount
amount recognised as  presentedin  enforceable master netting after
recognised set off in the the balance arrangement offsetting
balance sheet sheet Financial Cash
instruments collateral
(received/pl
edged)
282.77 (193.67) 89.10 = - 89.10
49.06 # 49.06 - - 49.06
331.83 (193.67) 138.16 - - 138.16
1,986.53 (193.67) 1,792.86 - - 1,792.86
195.20 - 195.20 - - 195.20
2,181.73 (193.67) 1,988.06 - - 1,988.06
/ < 140 Pogy,
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35, Disclosures on financial instruments (Continued)

(¢) Financial risk management

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices, liquidity and
credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments.

The Company has a risk management policy which not only covers the foreign exchange risks but also other risks associated with the financial assets and
liabilities such as interest rate risks and credit risks. The risk management policy is approved by the board of directors. The risk management framework aims

to:

]

-

Create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuations on the Company’s business plan.
Achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realisable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a
financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity

price fluctuations, liquidity and other market changes. Future specific market movements cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.
(i) (a) Foreign currency exchange rate risk:

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, balance
sheet, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows where any transaction references more than one currency or where assets/liabilities
are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency,

Considering the countries and economic environment in which the Company operates, its operations are subject to risks arising from fluctuations in
exchange rates in those countries. The risks primarily relate to fluctuations in U.S. dollar, Euro and GBP against the respective functional currencies of the
Company.

The Company, as per its risk management policy, uses foreign exchange and other derivative instruments primarily to hedge foreign exchange and
interest rate exposure. Any weakening of the functional currency may impact the Company’s cost of exports and cost of borrowings and consequently
may increase the cost of financing the Company's capital expenditures.

The Company evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to exchange rate risks. It hedges a part of these risks
by using derivative financial instruments in accordance with its risk management policies.

The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated for each currency by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate exposure of each currency and a
simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates shift in the foreign exchange rates of each currency by 10% while keeping the other variables as constant,

The exposure as indicated below is mitigated by some of the derivative contracts entered into by the Company as disclosed in (iv) derivative financial
instruments and risk management below.

The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure (other than risk arising from derivatives disclosed at clause (iv) below) as
of March 31, 2022:
(Xin crores)

U.S. dollar Euro GBP Chinese Others Total
Yuan
Financial assets 0.22 - - - - 0.22
Financial liabilities 59.22 78.86 137.38 32.09 0.23 307.78

Others mainly include currencies such as the Russian ruble, Japanese yen, Swiss franc, Indonesian Rupiahs, Thai bahts and Korean won.

10% appreciation/depreciation of the respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of the Company would result in
decrease/increase in the Company's net profit/(loss) before tax by approximately %0.02 crores and %30.78 crores for financial assets and financial
liabilities respectively for the year ended March 31, 2022. -

(Note: The impact is indicated on the profit/(loss) before tax basis.) 14th Foor,
Central B Wing a
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. Disclosures on financial instruments (Continued)
(i) (b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will lead to changes in fair value of financial instruments or
changes in interest income, expense and cash flows of the Company.

As at March 31, 2022 and 2021, financial liabilities of %2.28 crores and XNil crores, respectively, were subject to variable interest
rates. Increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates at the balance sheet date would result in decrease/increase in
profit/(loss) before tax of 0.23 crores and XNil crores for the year ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The model assumes that interest rate changes are instantaneous parallel shifts in the yield curve. Although some assets and
liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to re-pricing, these may not react correspondingly to changes in market interest
rates. Also, the interest rates on some types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate with changes in market interest rates, while
interest rates on other types of assets may change with a lag.

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation also
assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that
date. The period end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.
(Note: The impact is indicated on the profit/(loss) before tax basis).
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. Disclosures on financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty to meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. Further, the Company has access to funds
from debt markets through commercial paper programs, non-convertible debentures, senior notes and other debt instruments. The
Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and liquid and liquid plus schemes of mutual funds, which carry no/low mark to
market risks.

The Company also constantly monitors funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintaining financial

flexibility.
The table below provides undiscounted contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments as at March
31, 2022:
(X in crores)
Financial liabilities Carrying Due in 1* Due in 2™ Due in 3" to Due after Total
amount Year Year 5% year 5" year contractual
cash flows
(a) Trade payables 4,290.54 4,290.54 - - - 4,290.54
{b) Acceptances 2,036.34 2,036.34 - - - 2,036.34
(c) Borrowings and interest
thereon 196.12 2.28 - - 193.84 196.12
(d) Other financial liabilities 180.41 177.53 - 2.88 - 180.41
(e) Lease liabilities 748.41 153.37 172.09 355.85 298.56 979.87
(f) Derivative liabilities 13.94 13.94 - - - 13.94
Total 7,465.76 6,674.00 172,09 358.73 492.40 7,697.22

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments as at

March 31, 2021:
(X in crores)
Financial liabilities Carrying Due in1* Due in 2™ Duein3™to Due after Total
amount Year Year 5" year 5" Year contractual
cash flows
(a) Trade payables 1,986.53 1,986.53 - - - 1,986.53
(b) Acceptances 1,436.25 1,436.25 - - - 1,436.25
(c) Borrowings and interest 176.67 - - - 176.67 176.67
thereon
(d) Other financial liabilities 195.32 195.20 - 0.12 - 195.32
(e) Lease liabilities 685.51 140.60 142.83 302.98 332.35 918.76
Total 4,480.28 3,758.58 142.83 303.10 509.02 4,713.53
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. Disclosures on financial instruments (Continued)

(iv) Derivative financial instruments and risk management

(v)

The Company has entered into a variety of foreign currency, interest rates and commodity forward contracts and options to manage its
exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity price risk. The counterparty is generally a bank. These
financial exposures are managed in accordance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures.

The Company also enters into interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swap agreements, mainly to manage exposure on its fixed
rate or variable rate debt. The Company uses interest rate derivatives or currency swaps to hedge exposure to exchange rate fluctuations on
principal and interest payments for borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.

Specific transactional risks include risks like liquidity and pricing risks, interest rate and exchange rate fluctuation risks, volatility risks,
counterparty risks, settlement risks and gearing risks.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments are determined using valuation techniques based on information derived from observable market
data.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is as follows:
(% in crores)

As at March 31,
2022 2021
(a) Foreign currency forward exchange contracts and options (8.84) -
{b) Commodity Derivatives 23.68 -
Total 14.84 -

The gain/(loss) due to fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates on derivative contracts, recognised in the income statement was %3.78
crores and % Nil for the years ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Commodity Price Risk

The Company is exposed to commodity price risk arising from the purchase of certain raw materials such as aluminium, copper, platinum and
palladium. This risk is mitigated through the use of derivative contracts and fixed-price contracts with suppliers. The derivative contracts are
not hedge accounted under Ind AS 109 but are instead measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The (gain)/loss on commodity derivative contracts, recognised in the statement of profit and loss was %4.28 crores and XNil for the years ended
March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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Tata Motors Passengar Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Related-party transactions

The Company’s related parties principally includes holding company Tata Motors Limited and its subsidiaries, joint operations and associates. The Company routinely
enters into transactions with these related parties in the ordinary course of business.

All transactions with related parties are conducted at arm's length price under normal terms of business and all amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be

The following table summarises related-party transactions and balances for the year ended / as at March 31, 2022:

Parent Company Subsidiaries loint Associates Total
Arrangements and its
subsidiaries
(A) Transactions
Purchase of products 134.63 69.38 7,643.38 - 7,847.39
Sale of products {694.07) (451.34) (2,501.52) (9.87) (3,656.80)
Services received 313.48 393.80 0.44 4.25 711.97
Services rendered (12.79) (71.51) - - (84.30)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 11.82 1.70 . 0.09 13.61
Bills discounted - 417.71 - 4,203.56 4,621.27
Finance taken (including loans and equity) 9,417.00 - - - 9,417.00
Interest (income)/expense, dividend (income)/paid, net (21.99) (12.76) 32.41 - (2.34)
Finance given (including loans and equity) 6,055.00 - - - 6,055.00
Finance given, taken back (including loans and equity) 4,285.00 - . . 4,285.00
(B) Balances
Amounts receivable in respect of loans and interest thereon 1,770.00 - . E 1,770.00
Borrowing towards Lease Liability - 54.27 20.70 - 74,97
Repayment towards lease liability - 24.07 - . 24,07
Amounts payable in respect of loans and interest thereon - - - -
Amount payable in respect of Lease Liability 296.05 (534.98) - (238.93)
Trade and other receivables 153.03 178.10 407.92 9.37 748.42
Trade payables (190.95) (235.19) (1,596.11) (0.88) (2,023.13)
Acceptances - {79.50) - - (79.50)
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36.

Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Related-party transactions (Continued)

The following table summarises related-party transactions and balances for the year ended / as at March 31, 2021:
(X in crores)

Parent Fellow Joint Total
Company Subsidiaries  Arrangements

A) Transactions
Purchase of products 795.77 141.69 2,755.29 3,692.75
Sale of products 266.72 (314.28) (1,095.59) (1,143.15)
Services received 44,07 28.39 0.12 72.58
Services rendered (2.82) (5.17) (0.05) (8.05)
Bills discounted - - - -

Purchase of property, plant and equipment - 1.32 - 1.32
Sale of property, plant and equipment - < . -
Sale of business - -
Finance given (including loans and equity) - 13.37 - 13.37
Finance given, taken back (including loans and equity) - - . -
Finance taken (including loans and equity) - - 2

Finance taken, paid back (including loans and equity) - . # .

Interest (income)/expense, dividend (income)/paid, net - (16.98) - (16.98)
Borrowing towards lease Liability - - 167.99 167.99
Repayment towards lease liability - - 14.14 14.14

(B) Balances

Amounts receivable in respect of loans and interest thereon - 56.45 - 56.45
Amounts payable in respect of loans and interest thereon - - - -
Amount payable in respect of Lease Liability = - 265.85 265.85
Trade and other receivables - 107.34 - 107.34
Trade payables - (81.64) (261.12) (342.76)
Acceptances - - - -
Assets / deposits given/taken as security " = - -
Provision for amount receivable (including loans) - (38.60) - (38.60)
(X in crores)
Year ended March 31,
ion ment personnel: 2022 2021
Short-term benefits 0.56 -
Post-employment benefits® 0.01 -

The compensation of CEO and Managing Director is %0.12 crores and % NIL crores for the year ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
Refer note 39 for information on transactions with post employment benefit plans,
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Transactions with struck off companieés
The following table summarises the transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of Companies Act, 1956 for the year ended / as at March 31, 2022:

Nature of transactions Transaction Balance HelaBonahip Wik
Name of struck off Company the Struck off
with struck off Company amount outstanding
company

Axis Systems Material Purchase 0.41 External vendor
Aargee Equipments Private Ltd Material Purchase 0.15 External vendor
Akshay Industries Services availed 0.13 External vendor
Durga Automobiles Services availed 0.01 External vendor
Karnavati Motors Services availed 0.08 External vendor
Lala Enterprises Services availed 0.02 External vendor
Prakash Industries Material Purchase 0.78 External vendor
Pratap Motors Services availed 0.01 External vendor
Rushi Motors Services availed 0.19 External vendor
Shiva Motors Services availed 0.03 External vendor
Sarna Motors*® Services availed - External vendor
Shreya Industries Material Purchase 0.01 External vendor
Sandeep Automobiles Services availed 0.01 External vendor
Tara Tools Material Purchase 0.01 External vendor
Tangent Technologies Material Purchase 0.01 External vendor
Zenith Motors Services availed 0.01 External vendor

The following table summarises the transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of Companies Act, 1956 for the year ended / as at March 31, 2021:

T —— Nature of transactions Transaction Balance R‘i’::'::::::;:th
with struck off Company amount outstanding
company
Active Automobiles Services availed 0.03 External vendor
Akshay Industries* Services availed 0.09 External vendor
Karnavati Motors Services availed 0.08 External vendor
Tara Tools Material Purchase 0.20 External vendor
Tangent Technologies Material Purchase 0.06 External vendor
Unique Marketing* Material Purchase - External vendor
Zenith Motors Services availed 0.01 External vendor

* Less than % 50,000
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as TML B Iytics Services Li

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Employee benefits
(a) Accounting policy
The employee transferred from the group companies have been considered under continuity of service from employee benefit perspective.

U]

(i)

(i)

{iv)

i)

vil)

{viif)

Gratuity

Tata Motars Passenger Vehicles Limited have an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering ellgible employees. The plan
provides for a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount
equivalent to 15 to 30 days salary payable for each comy i year of service, Vesting occurs upen completion of five years of service. Tata Motors
pPassenger Vehicles Limited makes annual contributions to gratuity funds established as trusts. Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited account for the
liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation.

Superannuation
Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited have two superannuation plans, a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. An eligible employee on
April 1, 1996 could elect to be a member of either plan.

ployees who are bers of the defined benefit superannuation plan are entitled to benefits depending on the years of service and salary drawn. The
monthly pension benefits after retirement range from 0.75% to 2% of the annual basic salary for each year of service. Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles
Limited for tion benefits payable in future under the plan based on an actuarial valuation.

With effect from April 1, 2003, this plan was amended and benefits earned by covered employees have been protected as at March 31, 2003. Employees
covered by this plan are prospectively entitled to benefits computed on a basis that ensures that the annual cost of providing the pension benefits would
not exceed 15% of salary.

During the year ended March 31, 2015, the employees covered by this plan were given a one-time option to exit from the plan prospectively.
Furthermore, the employees who opted for exit were given one- time option to withdraw accumulated balances from the superannuation plan.

The Company ins a sep irrevocable trust for employees covered and entitled to benefits, The Company contributes up to 15% or 21,50,000
whichever is lower of the eligible employee’s salary to the trust every year. The Company recognises such contribution as an expense when incurred and

has no further obligation beyond this contribution,

Bhavishya kalyan yojana (BKY)

Bhavishya Kalyan Yojana is an unfunded defined benefit plan for employees of Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited. The benefits of the plan include
pension in certain cases, payable up to the date of normal super ion had the employee been in service, to an eligible employee at the time of death
or permanent disablement, while in service, either as a result of an injury or as certified by the appropriate authority. The monthly payment to
dependents of the deceased/disabled employee under the plan equals equals 50% of the basic salary or 30% of total fixed pay at the time of death or
accident or a specified amount, whichever is greater, Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited account for the liability for BKY benefits payable in the
future based on an actuarial valuation.

provident fund and family pension

In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund,
a defined contribution plan, In which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’
salary (currently 12% of employees’ salary). The relevant contributions, as specified under the law, are deposited with the Employee Provident fund
Organisation,

Post-retirement medicare scheme
Under this unfunded scheme, employees of Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited receive medical benefits subject to certain limits on amounts of

benefits, periods after retirement and types of benefits, depending on their grade and location at the time of retirement. Employees separated from the
Company as part of an Early Separation Scheme, on medical grounds or due to permanent disablement are also covered under the scheme, Tata Motors
Passenger Vehicles Limited account for the liability for post-retirement medical scheme based on an actuarial valuation.

Compensated absences

The Company provides for the encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to

certain limits, for future encashment. The liability is provided based on the number of days of unutilised leave at each balance sheet date on the basis of
an independent actuarial valuation.

Remeasurement gains and losses

Remeasurement comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling and the return on assets {excluding interest) relating to retirement
benefit plans, are recognised directly in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurement recorded in other comprehensive
income s not reclassified to statement of Profit and Loss.

Actuarial gains and losses relating to long-term employee benefits are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the pericd in which they arise,

Measurement date

The date of reti plans Is March 31.

The present value of the defined benefit liability and the related current service cost and past service cost are measured using projected unit credit
method.

The present value of the post-employment benefit obligation ona

ber of factors, it is determined on an actuarial basis using a number of

ions. The ptions used in d ining the net cost/{income) for pensions include the discount rate, inflation and mortality assumptions.Any
hanges In these ptions will impact upon the carrying amount of post-employment benefit obligations.
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
38. Employee benefits (continued)

Defined Benefit Plan
Pension and post retirement medical plans
The following tables sets out the funded and unfunded status and the amounts recognised in the financial statements for

the pension and the post retirement medical plans in respect of Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited:

(X in crores)

Pension Benefits Post retirement medical Benefits
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021 2022 2021
Change in defined benefit obligations :
Defined benefit obligation, beginning of the year 217.82 194.76 10.88 9.46
Current service cost 15.07 14.08 0.75 0.69
Interest cost 15.20 13.41 0.75 0.65
Remeasurements (gains) / losses -
Actuarial losses arising from changes in
demographic assumptions 1.44 - 1.02 -
Actuarial losses arising from changes in financial
assumptions 3.46 - 4.86 0.56
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in
experience adjustments 4.10 (3.04) (0.52) (0.48)
Transfer in/(out) of liability (7.52) - (0.35) -
Benefits paid from plan assets (6.37) (1.39) - -
Past service cost - Plan amendment 5.79 - 1.17 -
Defined benefit obligation, end of the year 248.99 217.82 18.56 10.88
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year 195.31 173.84 - -
Interest income 13.58 11.96 - -
Remeasurements losses
Return on plan assets, (excluding
amount included in net Interest expense) 23,55 10.90 - -
Employer’s contributions 0.09 - - -
Transfer in/(out) of liability (6.59) E - -
Benefits paid (6.37) (1.39) - -
Fair value of plan assets, end of the year 219.57 195.31 - -
Pension Benefits Post retirement medical Benefits
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021 2022 2021
Amount recognised in the balance sheet consists of
Present value of defined benefit obligation 248.99 217.82 18.56 10.88
Fair value of plan assets 219.57 195.31 - -
Asset ceiling (0.52) - - -
Net liability (28.90) (22.51) (18.56)
Amounts in the balance sheet:
Non—current assets 1.67 - -
Non-current liabilities (30.57) (22.51) (18.56)
Net liability (28.90) (22.51) (18.56)
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. Employee benefits (continued)

Information for funded plans with a defined benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:

Defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Information for funded plans with a defined benefit obligation less than plan assets:

Defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Information for unfunded plans:
Pension Benefits

(X in crores)

Pension Benefits

As at March 31,

2022 2021

- 195.30
- 195.30

Pension Benefits

As at March 31,

2022 2021

217.40 -
219.56 -

Post retirement medical Benefits

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021 2022 2021
Defined benefit obligation 31.59 22.52 18.56 10.88

Net pension and post retirement medical cost consist of the following components:

Pension Benefits

Post retirement medical Benefits

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

2022 2021 2022 2021
Service cost 15.07 14.08 0.75 0.69
Net interest cost 1.62 1.45 0.75 0.65
Past service cost - Plan amendment 5.79 - 1.17 -
Net periodic cost 22.48 15.53 2.67 1.34

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligation recognised in other comprehensive income.

Pension Benefits Post retirement medical Benefits
Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,

2022 2021 2022 2021
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, (excluding amount included in net
Interest expense) (23.55) (10.90) - "
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic
assumptions 1.44 - 1.02 -
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial
assumptions 3.46 - 4.86 0.56
Asset ceiling 0.52 = -
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in experience
adjustments on plan liabilities 4.10 (3.04) (0.52) (0.48)
Total recognised in other comprehensive income (14.03) (13.94) 5.36 /’"’g}{ .
Total recognised in statement of comprehensive income / e s ~ { 4

8.45 1.59 803 1/ ¥/ canmas ,W
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as "TML Business Analytics Services Limited")
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. Employee benefits (continued)

The assumptions used in accounting for the pension and post retirement medical plans are set out below:

Pension Benefits Post retirement medical Benefits
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021 2022 2021
Discount rate 6.50% - 7.10% 6.00% - 6.80% 7.20% 6.90%
Rate of increase in compensation level of covered employees 6.00% - 9.00% 6.00% - 7.00% NA NA
Increase in health care cost NA NA 6.00% 6.00%

Plan Assets
The fair value of Company’s pension plan asset as of March 31, 2022 and 2021 by category are as follows:

Pension benefits

As at March 31,
2022 2021

Asset category:
Cash and cash equivalents 2.6% 5.1%
Debt instruments (quoted) 67.9% 67.7%
Debt instruments (unquoted) 0.0% 0.4%
Equity instruments (quoted) 8.2% 6.0%
Deposits with Insurance companies 21.4% 20.8%

100.0% 100.0%

The Company’s policy is driven by considerations of maximising returns while ensuring credit quality of the debt instruments. The asset allocation for plan
assets is determined based on investment criteria prescribed under the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961, and is also subject to other exposure limitations. The
Company evaluates the risks, transaction costs and liquidity for potential investments. To measure plan asset performance, the Company compares actual
returns for each asset category with published bench marks.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2022 is 11.69 years ( March 31, 2021 : 13.05 years).

The Company expects to contribute ¥11.32 crores to the funded pension plans during the year ended March 31, 2023.
The table below outlines the effect on the service cost, the interest cost and the defined benefit obligation in the event of a decrease/increase of 1% in the
assumed rate of discount rate, salary escalation and health care cost:

Impact on defined benefit obligation Impact on service cost and interest
cost

Assumption Change in assumption

Discount rate

Salary escalation rate

Health care cost

Increase by 1%
Decrease by 1%

Increase by 1%
Decrease by 1%

Increase by 1%
Decrease by 1%

%27.01 crores
X31.57 crores

X25.72 crores
%22.69 crores

%4.06 crores
%3.26 crores
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%5.36 crores
X5.76 crores

%5.39 crores
X4.72 crores

%0.86 crores
%0.68 crores
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Tata Motors Passenger Vehicles Limited (Formerly known as “TML Business Analytics Services Limited”)
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 Ratio
Particulars Year ended March 31,
SrNo 2022 2071 Change Reason for Change

a)  |Debt Equity Ratio (number of times) 0.03 0.0 34%| Due to acquisition of PV undertaking from
[Total Debt®/ Shareholders' Equity™) TML

b) |Debt Service Coverage Ratio (number of times) {4.37) (10.08) -57%| Due to growth in revenue.
[{Prafitf{loss) before exceptional items and o B { an L i af
Borwwingﬁ'n,l]

¢)  |Current ratio (number of times) 0.56 0.30 87%|Due to higher revenue and higher raw
[Current assets (excluding Assets classified as held for sale) / Current linbilities {excluding Liabilities directly material consumed,

lated with Assets Classified as Held For Sale]

d)  |Trade receivable turnover (number of times) 237,76 88,90 167%| Due to higher revenue.
( from | Average Trade bies]

&) |Inventory turnover [number of times) 2114 12.23 7 raw material in fine with

|(Raw materlal consumed™ / average Inventory™} higher revenue.

) |Trade payable turnover (number of times) 894 6.14 45%| Higher raw material consumed in line with
|Cost of I d | Average Trade ] higher re

g) |Met capital turnover (number of times) {9.47) (5.44) 74%|Due to higher revenue,

| F]nm«n: from aperations / Working capital™}

h} | Net profit margin (%) [2.61%) [2.36%) 11%
[Met profit after tax / Revenue from

) |Return on equity (number of times) {0.12) 10.12) 1%
[Met profit after tax / Average holders' equity]

JI |Return on capital employed (number of times) (0.14) {0.23) -A0%| Due to reduction in loss.

rofit before interest and tax / Capital employed'™)

k) |Rmrn on investments (number of times) Nat Applicable Mot Applicable

[Het profit after tax / Average investments]
Motes:

i Total debts includes non current and current borrowings
ii Equity = Equity share capital + Other equity
iil Repayment of borrawings Includes repayment of long-term borrowings, proceeds from short-term barrowings, repayment of short-term borrowings and net change in other short-term borrowings
{with maturity up to three months).
iv Working capital = Current assets (excluding Assets classified as held for sale) - Current liabilities ( fing current of long lerm debt, interest acerued on borrowings and liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held for sale).
v Cost of goods sold includes Cost of d, Purchases of products fer sale and Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and products for sale.
i Inventary includes Raw materials and components, Work-In-progress, Finished goods, Stores and spare parts, Consumable tools and Goods-in-transit - Raw materials and components.
vii Capital employed includes Shareholders' Equity, non current and current borrowings

40. Other statutory information ;
{I} The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending agalnst the Company for holding any Benami property.
() The Company da not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(I} The Company have not traded or Invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
V) The C y have not adh d or loanad or i funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities { ) with the und ding that the diary shall: {a}
directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the {Ultimate Beneficlaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the
like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

V) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ls), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded inwriting or otherwise) that the Company
shali: (a) directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Baneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Vi) The Company have not any such fon which is not Jed in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as Income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
IVIl} The Cs is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the fes act,2013) or thereof or other lender in accordance with the guldelines on
wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.
[VIN} The Company has complied with the number of layers for its holding in downstr « ies p ibed under clause (87) of section 2 of the companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies(Restriction

on number of layers) Rules, 2017

{1%) The Company does not have any transaction which are not recorded in the books of accounts that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessment under the Income
tax Act, 1961

1%) The Company has not revalued any of its Property,Plants and Equipments (including Right-of-use Assets) during the year.

Grrozan {Easi),
Mumibias y
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41, Other notes:

i) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
The information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extant such parties have been identified on the
basls of information available with the Company. The amount of principal and interest outstanding during the year is given below :
(% in crores)
Particulars As at March 31,
2022 2021
{a) Amounts outstanding but not due (including capital creditors) as at March 31, ava1 26.13
{b) Amounts due but unpald as at March 31, - Principal 0.44 0.16
(c) A paid after appointed date during the year - Principal 51.16 23.06
(d) Amount of interest accrued and unpaid as at March 31, - Interest 1.09 0.43
(e) Amount of estimated interest due and payable for the period from April
1, 2021 to actual date of payment or May 18, 2021 (whichever is - Interest 0.01 0.02
) The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (Including derivative contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company has
d and d that adequate provision as required under any law/accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts {including derivative ¢ J has
been made In books of account.
i) The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labaur and
Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active conslderation by the
Ministry. The Company will assess the Impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements In the peried in which, the Code
becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published,
iv)  Inaccordance with the Rule 6 of The Companies (Account) Rules, 2014, as the holding company, .e. Tata Motors Limited, files its « jated financial t with the Regi of
Comy which are prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the companies {Indian Accounting standards) rules,2015 read with Section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013, Tata
Motars Passenger Vehicles Limited is not required to prepare its consolidated fi | Mo rended 31st March-2022. =
nge q prep f yfor it yea . \ >
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